
Planning Board Agenda  July 29, 2025 
  Page 1 of 2 

PLANNING BOARD AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
TUESDAY               COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
July 29, 2025 – 5:30 PM                                        4300 S. ATLANTIC AVE., PONCE INLET, FL 

 

 
SUNSHINE LAW NOTICE FOR BOARD MEMBERS – Notice is hereby provided that one or more 

members of the Town Council or other Town Boards may attend and speak at this meeting. 
 

A complete copy of the materials for this agenda is available at Town Hall. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 
 
2. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM. 
 

A. Election of Chair. (and Vice-Chair if necessary) 
 
3. ADOPTION OF AGENDA. 
 
4. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES: 
 

A. June 24, 2025 
B. June 24, 2025 Special Planning Board meeting 

 
5. REPORT OF STAFF 
 
6. CORRESPONDENCE & DISCLOSURE OF EX-PARTE COMMUNICATION 
 
7. HEARING OF CASES (Public hearings & Quasi-Judicial matters): A Quasi-Judicial decision 
entails the application of already-established criteria and public rule or policy to a limited number of specific individuals, 
interests, properties, or activities. Certain standards of basic fairness must be adhered to afford due process. The parties must 
receive notice of all hearings and be able to present evidence, to cross-examine witnesses, and be informed of all the facts 
upon which a Quasi-Judicial board acts. It shall be the responsibility of the APPLICANT to ensure that the proposal meets 
all the criteria and standards established in the Land Use and Development Code for the development sought. Procedure for 
Public Hearings:  
 

1. Reading of the Item for the Record 
2. Staff Testimony, including Noticing Information 
3. Board discussion 
4. Public Discussion, including statement of Applicant(s) 
5. Board Members individually complete Quasi-Judicial worksheets (for variance cases only) 
6. Motion and Second by the Board; followed by Board discussion 
7. Roll-call Vote. 

 
A. Application/Type: SPEC 6-2025 Minor Special Exception 

Address: 4884 Front Street 
Purpose: To allow a minor special exception pursuant to Land Use and 
Development Code  (LUDC) Section 6.6.3 to allow a sightseeing boat base (not to 
exceed 50 passenger capacity) per Section 3.29 

 
8. BUSINESS ITEMS.  



Planning Board Agenda  July 29, 2025 
  Page 2 of 2 

A. Amending Articles 3 and 10 of the Land Use and Development Code (LUDC) 
related to rental registrations and inspections. 

 
9. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION. 

 
10. BOARD DISCUSSION.   
 
11. ADJOURNMENT. 
   

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Planning Board with respect to any matter 
considered at a meeting or hearing, he/she will need a record of the proceedings and that for such purpose, 
may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made (at their own expense), which includes 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. People who require an accommodation to 
attend this meeting should contact the Ponce Inlet Town Hall at 236-2150 at least 48 hours prior to the                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
meeting to request such assistance. 



 
 

 

 
Report to Planning Board 

 
Topic: Approval of Meeting Minutes 

 
Summary:  
 
Staff has prepared the attached set of Planning Board meeting minutes 
and submits for the Board’s review and approval. 
 
A. June 24, 2025 
B. June 24, 2025 Special Planning Board meeting 

 
Requested by: 
 
Ms. Stewart, Assistant Deputy Clerk 

 
Reviewed by: 
 
Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director 

 
Approved by: 
 
Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: July 29, 2025 

Agenda Item:   4  



Planning Board Meeting Minutes June 24, 2025 Page 1 of 3 

Town of Ponce Inlet 
Planning Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
June 24, 2025 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Pursuant to proper notice, 1 
Vice Chair Carney called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers, 4300 S. 2 
Atlantic Avenue, Ponce Inlet, FL, and led attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance and a moment of 3 
silence in memory of late Board Chair Mike Kaszuba. He offered a few words of respect, 4 
highlighting Mr. Kaszuba’s thoughtful leadership of the Board, noting that he was an inspiration 5 
to others. 6 

7 
2. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: A quorum was established. 8 

9 
Board members present: 10 

Mr. Oebbecke, Seat #1 11 
Mr. Young, Seat #2; Chair  12 
Mr. Revak, Seat #3  13 
Mr. Cannon, Seat #4 14 
Mr. Carney, Seat #5; Vice Chair 15 
Ms. Vanderbeek, Alternate #1 16 

17 
Staff present: 18 

Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director 19 
Ms. New, Town Attorney 20 
Ms. Rippey, Principal Planner 21 
Ms. Stewart, Assistant Deputy Clerk 22 
Mr. Wheatcraft, Senior Planner 23 

24 
3. ADOPTION OF AGENDA: Vice Chair Carney explained that, following the passing of 25 
Chair Kaszuba, the Board is required to elect a new Chair. Mr. Oebbecke recommended deferring 26 
the election to the next meeting out of respect for Mr. Kaszuba and noting that the town has not 27 
yet publicly acknowledged the vacancy. 28 

29 
Mr. Oebbecke moved to defer the election of a Chair to the next regularly scheduled meeting; 30 
seconded by Mr. Young. The motion PASSED, 5-0, consensus. 31 

32 
Mr. Cannon requested the quasi-judicial worksheet be discussed under Item 10: Board Discussion. 33 
Vice Chair Carney reminded members that Item 7-B will be discussed at the 5:30 PM special 34 
Planning Board meeting today. 35 

36 
Mr. Young moved to approve the amended agenda by removing Item 7-B and adding a discussion 37 
of the quasi-judicial worksheet to Item 10; seconded by Mr. Cannon. The motion PASSED, 5-0, 38 
consensus.39 

40 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Mr. Revak noted a correction to the address listed under 41 
Item 7-B, stating it should be 4915 S. Atlantic Avenue, not 4951. 42 

4-A



  

Planning Board Meeting Minutes June 24, 2025 Page 2 of 3 

A. April 22, 2025 43 
 44 
Mr. Oebbecke moved to approve the April 22, 2025, meeting minutes as amended; seconded by 45 
Mr. Cannon. The motion PASSED, 5-0, consensus. 46 
 47 
5. REPORT OF STAFF: Mr. Lear announced that the Marine Science Center reopened to 48 
the public today following a $4.2 million renovation project that began last September. 49 
Renovations included enhanced marine exhibits, expanded educational facilities, and upgraded 50 
visitor amenities. He also reported that the Town Council awarded a consulting services contract 51 
to Brizaga, Inc. for the development of an Adaptation Plan. This plan serves as a follow-up to the 52 
previously completed Vulnerability Assessment and Watershed Master Plan and will outline 53 
strategies to help the Town build resilience against climate-related hazards. The Adaptation Plan 54 
will elaborate on the findings from both the Vulnerability Assessment and the Watershed Master 55 
Plan and identify the most vulnerable sites as focus areas.  56 
 57 
Mr. Lear introduced Mr. Larry Wheatcraft, Senior Planner.  58 
 59 
6. CORRESPONDENCE/DISCLOSURE OF EX-PARTE COMMUNICATION: None. 60 
 61 
7. HEARING OF CASES:  62 
 63 

A. Application/Type: VAC 5-2025 Vacating an Easement 64 
Address: 4915 S. Atlantic Avenue 65 
Purpose: To allow a vacation of easement per Article IV., Section 70 of the 66 
Code of Ordinances 67 

 68 
Ms. Rippey announced the applicant is Jessica Gow of the Cobb Cole law firm, who is present 69 
today on behalf of the property owner, White Waves, LLC.  Ms. Rippey provided a PowerPoint 70 
presentation and explained that the applicant is requesting approval to vacate a drainage, access, 71 
and utility easement located on the property at 4915 S. Atlantic Avenue to construct a single-72 
family structure. The area to be vacated measures 15 feet by 876 feet. Ms. Rippey provided 73 
background on the subject project, noting that it was originally part of a minor replat that split a 74 
larger parcel into three separate parcels; the two north parcels were later re-combined to create one 75 
parcel (4915 S. Atlantic Avenue) for the construction of a new single-family home. The property 76 
is zoned R-1 and has a corresponding Low-Density Single-Family Residential future land use 77 
designation. The easement is situated in the center of the property; the other existing easements 78 
shall remain in place along the north and south sides of the property.  79 
 80 
Pursuant to Section 70-112 of the Code of Ordinances, the vacation request application materials 81 
were  provided to the Public Works Director, Police Chief, Fire Chief/Public Safety Director, 82 
Town Engineer, and the City of Port Orange Public Utilities Department for review and comment; 83 
the written responses identified no issues or concerns. The applicant submitted letters of no 84 
objection from all applicable utility providers. The vacation will not negatively impact existing or 85 
future utility infrastructure, access rights, or engineering-related concerns. Vice Chair Carney 86 
inquired if the 15-foot easement on the side of the property would still be retained with this 87 
vacation of easement in the center; Ms. Rippey confirmed it would be. Vice Chair Carney inquired 88 
if the utilities would connect from the north or south easement of the property. Ms. Rippey replied 89 
it is unknown at this time.  90 
Ms. Jessica Gow of Cobb Cole, the applicant, explained that she previously appeared before the 91 



  

Planning Board Meeting Minutes June 24, 2025 Page 3 of 3 

Board in December 2021 on behalf of a prior owner, when three lots of record were created. She 92 
noted that the original plat predated the Town’s requirement for a 7.5-foot utility easement. The 93 
current property owner has since purchased two of those lots and combined them to construct a 94 
single-family home. No utilities have been installed within the 7.5-foot easement, which will be 95 
preserved on the remaining sides of the property. Ms. Gow stated that, to her knowledge, existing 96 
utilities are located within the adjacent right-of-way and that future utility connections for the 97 
property will likely be made from the front of the property. Vice Chair Carney then opened the 98 
floor for public comment; no comments were offered. 99 
Mr. Oebbecke recommended that the vacating an easement application (VAC 5-2025) per Article 100 
IV, Section 70 of the Code of Ordinances for 4915 S. Atlantic Avenue be forwarded to the Town 101 
Council with a recommendation of APPROVAL; seconded by Mr. Cannon. The motion PASSED 102 
5-0, with the following vote: Mr. Oebbecke – yes; Mr. Cannon – yes; Vice Chair Carney – yes; 103 
Mr. Young – yes; Mr. Revak – yes. 104 
 105 
8. BUSINESS ITEMS/PUBLIC HEARINGS: None. 106 
 107 
9. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: Vice Chair Carney opened public participation – there was 108 
none. 109 
 110 
10. BOARD DISCUSSION: Mr. Cannon asked Attorney New whether the quasi-judicial 111 
worksheet is required by the Code of Ordinances and if similar forms are used by other 112 
municipalities for Board members to indicate how and why they voted on each criterion. Attorney 113 
New explained that not every municipality uses a worksheet specifically, but they still go through 114 
each criteria. She would have to research the Code, but she doubts that it is a requirement to use a 115 
specific worksheet; it is more of a best practices function because it is important nothing is missed. 116 
Mr. Lear stated he has not witnessed Planning Boards completing these forms previously and noted 117 
it was changed to variances only. Attorney New stated she will research the issue and bring back 118 
more information. Mr. Oebbecke explained that at one time, the Board voted against the Town 119 
staff’s recommendation and no justification for that vote was given. The thought was if the Board 120 
members were going to vote against the Town staff’s recommendation, there should be some 121 
explanation behind it; he believes that should still hold. Vice Chair Carney requested copies of the 122 
quasi-judicial forms be provided at the 5:30 PM meeting.  123 
 124 
Vice Chair Carney referred to previous discussions held both at this meeting and with the Town 125 
Council regarding the approval of the farmer’s market and that the criteria outlined in the Town’s 126 
Code does not align with the types of vendors residents wish to see. Mr. Lear assured him those 127 
updates, along with several other amendments, are in progress, although it may be a few months 128 
before it is finalized. 129 
 130 
11. ADJOURNMENT: The meeting was adjourned at 2:32 p.m. 131 
 132 
Prepared and submitted by,  133 
 134 
Draft 135 
Debbie Stewart 136 
Assistant Deputy Clerk 137 
 138 
Attachment(s): None 139 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes June 24, 2025 Page 1 of 4 

Town of Ponce Inlet 
Planning Board 

Special Meeting Minutes 
June 24, 2025 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Pursuant to proper notice, 1 
Vice Chair Carney called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers, 4300 S. 2 
Atlantic Avenue, Ponce Inlet, FL, and led attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 3 

4 
2. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: A quorum was established.  5 

6 
Board members present: 7 

Mr. Oebbecke, Seat #1 8 
Mr. Young, Seat #2 9 
Mr. Revak, Seat #3  10 
Mr. Cannon, Seat #4 11 
Mr. Carney, Seat #5; Vice Chair 12 
Ms. Vanderbeek, Alternate #1 13 

14 
Staff present: 15 

Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director 16 
Ms. New, Town Attorney 17 
Ms. Rippey, Principal Planner 18 
Ms. Stewart, Assistant Deputy Clerk 19 

20 
3. ADOPTION OF AGENDA: 21 

22 
Mr. Revak moved to approve the agenda as presented; seconded by Mr. Cannon. The motion 23 
PASSED, 5-0, consensus.24 

25 
4. CORRESPONDENCE/DISCLOSURE OF EX-PARTE COMMUNICATION: None. 26 

27 
5. HEARING OF CASES (Public hearings/Quasi-Judicial matters): 28 

29 
A. Application/Type: SPEC 6-202530 

Address: 4884 Front Street31 
Purpose: To approve a minor special exception pursuant to LUDC Section32 
6.6.3 to allow a sightseeing boat base (not to exceed 50-passenger capacity)33 
per Section 3.2934 

35 
Mr. Lear provided a PowerPoint presentation and explained that the applicant, Vernon Kuftic, of 36 
Daytona Catamarans, LLC, requests approval of a minor special exception for a sightseeing boat 37 
base (not to exceed 50-passenger capacity) at Sea Love Boat Works Marina at 4884 Front Street. 38 
The applicant is seeking to change the location of his existing boat base operation (approved 39 
through a previous special exception) at 4936 S. Peninsula Drive. If approved, the sightseeing boat 40 
would use the existing dock and boat slip facilities at the property, with no new facilities proposed. 41 
Mr. Lear reviewed the special exception review process and provided a property overview. The 42 

4-B



  

Planning Board Meeting Minutes June 24, 2025 Page 2 of 4 

subject property is zoned B-2, Riverfront Commercial and lies within the Riverfront Overlay 43 
District (ROD). He explained that the B-2 riverfront commercial zoning district is intended to 44 
support small-scale, water-oriented commercial activity, in accordance with the Future Land Use 45 
element policies of the Comprehensive Plan.  46 
 47 
Mr. Lear provided information regarding the vessel to be used, the “Arabella,” a 50’x28’ U.S. 48 
Coast Guard certified catamaran that can accommodate up to 48 passengers. The request to 49 
relocate from 4936 S. Peninsula Drive to the Sea Love Boat Works Marina is intended to provide 50 
access to a mooring site with deeper water, enhancing safety for customer boarding. The proposed 51 
use offers daily tours between 10:00 AM and 9:00 PM, with an anticipated average of one trip per 52 
day. The sightseeing operation will have one designated wet boat slip; the applicant provided a 53 
copy of the lease and designated parking lot location with the application. Mr. Lear explained that 54 
the parking lot is located north of Beach Street on the east side of Front Street. He noted that this 55 
is a non-conforming lot that may continue in its current condition, provided it is not enlarged or 56 
expanded. The lot is also used by Sea Love Boat Works Marina, Sea Spirit Deep Sea Fishing 57 
Charters and Waterproof Charters Fishing, leaving 28 spaces available for use by the applicant.  58 
 59 
Mr. Lear reviewed the four specific criteria for sightseeing boat base operations outlined in Section 60 
3.29.2 of the Land Use and Development Code (LUDC) and confirmed that the applicant met each 61 
one. He also reviewed the general criteria, including consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and 62 
the impact on surrounding areas and noted that all applicable criteria were satisfied. Based on the 63 
findings outlined in this memorandum, staff recommends approval of the minor special exception 64 
for the applicant to operate a sightseeing boat base at 4884 Front Street, subject to six conditions. 65 
These include limiting the use to one sightseeing boat base (not to exceed 50 passenger capacity) 66 
and requiring the allocation of 19 parking spaces within the Sea Love Boat Works Marina parking 67 
lot for the sightseeing operation. Vice Chair Carney asked for clarification regarding the non-68 
conforming status of the parking lot. Mr. Lear explained that while the lot is properly zoned, it has 69 
existed in its current condition for decades and does not meet current development standards. that 70 
would be required if it was a new site, however the site can remain in its current condition as long 71 
as it is not enlarged or expanded. Members continued to discuss the parking lot’s non-conforming 72 
status. 73 
 74 
Mr. Oebbecke referred to the email received from Mr. Klopfenstein, 4880 Sailfish Drive, regarding 75 
the parking lot and asked if it was relevant to this request. Mr. Lear explained that Mr. Klopfenstein 76 
lives adjacent to the parking area. Mr. Lear explained that if the parking lot owner was to come in 77 
with a new, vacant property, he would have to have a 35-foot buffer from the residential area, 78 
however, this was a non-conforming property long before that residential property was built. Mr. 79 
Lear explained it is this Board’s prerogative to place a condition on the special exception requiring 80 
a buffer. Mr. Revak asked if we could require vehicles to park facing the water; Mr. Lear explained 81 
that it would be difficult to enforce as Mr. Kuftic does not have ownership of the parking lot. 82 
Discussion ensued about what type of buffer currently exists and what type of buffer would be 83 
appropriate. Mr. Oebbecke suggested requiring as one of the conditions to the special exception, a 84 
natural buffer be created between the parking lot and that residence to allow for more privacy and 85 
noise abatement.  86 
 87 
Vice-Chair Carney asked the applicant, Mr. Vernon Kuftic, if he wished to speak on his own 88 
behalf. Mr. Kuftic stated that based on recent emails, it appears the concern is related to vehicle 89 
lights. Vice Chair Carney confirmed that Mr. Kuftic leases parking spaces and therefore does not 90 



  

Planning Board Meeting Minutes June 24, 2025 Page 3 of 4 

control the parking lot. Mr. Kuftic added that he is willing to do what he can to address the issue; 91 
he has operated in the Town for 14 years and is relocating a half a mile only due to shallow waters 92 
causing the boat to run aground at its present location.  93 
 94 
Vice Chair Carney opened public comment. Mr. Keith Stanton, 4886 Sailfish Drive, reported a 95 
noticeable increase in parking activity in recent weeks. He questioned the lot’s capacity for 60 96 
vehicles, citing a photo showing approximately 40 cars. He suggested using the south side of Beach 97 
Street for overflow parking, noting it is typically underutilized. Mr. Stanton also raised concerns 98 
about vehicles parking near his property wall, stating that on three nights that week, individuals 99 
remained in cars after 10:00 PM with headlights shining into his living room. If relocation is not 100 
feasible, he recommended adding a buffer or screen. Ms. Stanton noted that the lot often floods, 101 
so any buffer vegetation should be flood tolerant. She recommended installing directional signage 102 
at each space to guide parking without reducing capacity. Citing the boat tour’s 9:00 PM end time, 103 
she observed that guests frequently linger—sometimes for hours, including one incident where a 104 
car remained with headlights on until 3:00 AM. She also suggested some parking may be linked 105 
to the dredging project.  106 
 107 
Ms. Gretchen Nichols, of Alberta Avenue and owner of the vacant lot located at 4876 Sailfish 108 
Drive, stated that if designated parking spaces are implemented, she recommends adding a berm 109 
or similar elevation to raise palmettos and create a natural buffer. She inquired whether alcohol is 110 
served on the boat. Mr. Kuftic responded that tickets include two drinks, either wine or soda. Ms. 111 
Nichols then asked for confirmation that no changes can be made to the parking lot without another 112 
meeting. Mr. Lear confirmed that the lot cannot be expanded or altered—only used as it currently 113 
exists. Mr. Oebbecke asked whether the Board could restrict parking to 10:00 PM. Mr. Lear stated 114 
that it is private property, and enforcement would be an issue. Mr. Lear suggested adding a 115 
condition to include a buffer between the parking area and the adjacent neighbors to the east. Vice 116 
Chair Carney shared that his concern is that the property owner is not here and the Board has not 117 
heard from them. Mr. Cannon stated the application was submitted by the owner of the Arabella 118 
but noted that the issue appears to be a lack of enforcement or oversight in the parking lot. He 119 
recommended tabling the item until the next meeting to allow the parking lot property owner to be 120 
present and either commit to policing the area or not. He emphasized that the Board cannot impose 121 
requirements such as fencing or landscaping on a property owner who is not represented. 122 
Discussion continued regarding what could be imposed on the property owner of the parking lot, 123 
and what type of buffer or vegetation could be installed.  Vice Chair Carney suggested to Mr. 124 
Kuftic that he speak to the owner of the parking lot property and let them know of the issues he is 125 
having; he does not think this Board is in a position to direct his customers where to park.  126 
 127 
Mr. Cannon moved to continue the application for a minor special exception to LUDC Section 128 
6.6.3 to allow a sightseeing boat base per Section 3.29 to the next regular scheduled meeting. 129 
 130 
Mr. Cannon asked if a special meeting would be needed. Vice Chair Carney asked how long it 131 
may take to contact the owner and hold a special meeting. Mr. Lear explained a special meeting 132 
requires 48 hours’ notice. Mr. Cannon asked if Mr. Kuftic could continue his business now as is; 133 
he said he can except when it is low tide. Mr. Oebbecke suggested that in the interest of the business 134 
owner (Mr. Kuftic) and the residents, to have a special meeting and invite the property owner of 135 
the parking lot. Mr. Lear explained staff would need to check the calendar and then contact Board 136 
members to coordinate availability.  137 
 138 



  

Planning Board Meeting Minutes June 24, 2025 Page 4 of 4 

 Mr. Cannon moved to continue this item to a date to be determined [tabled]; seconded by Mr. 139 
Young. The motion PASSED 5-0, with the following vote: Mr. Cannon – yes; Mr. Young – yes; 140 
Vice Chair Carney – yes; Mr. Oebbecke – yes Mr. Revak – yes. 141 
 142 
8. BUSINESS ITEMS/PUBLIC HEARINGS: None. 143 
 144 
9. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: Vice Chair Carney opened public participation – there was 145 
none. 146 
 147 
10. BOARD DISCUSSION: None. 148 
 149 
11. ADJOURNMENT: The meeting was adjourned at 6:15 p.m. 150 
 151 
Prepared and submitted by,  152 
 153 
Draft 154 
Debbie Stewart 155 
Assistant Deputy Clerk 156 
 157 
Attachment(s): Email – K. Stanton 158 
   Email – Klopfenstein 159 
 160 
    161 
 162 

















 
 

 

 
Report to Planning Board 

 
Topic: Minor Special Exception 

SPEC 6-2025  
4884 Front Street 

  
Summary: 
 
To allow a minor special exception pursuant to LUDC Section 6.6.3 to 
allow a sightseeing boat base per Section 3.29. 
 
Suggested motion:  
 
Approval, subject to the conditions in the staff report. 
 
Requested by: 
 
Ms. Rippey, Principal Planner 
 
Reviewed by: 
 
Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director 
 
Approved by: 
 
Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: July 29, 2025 

Agenda Item:   7-A 



MEMORANDUM 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while 

ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Planning Board  

From: Patty Rippey, Principal Planner 

Through: Darren Lear, AICP, Planning & Development Director 

Date: July 21, 2025 

Subject: Minor Special Exception request for Daytona Catamarans, LLC 

Case No. SPEC 006-2025 

REQUEST: To approve a minor special exception to allow a sightseeing boat 

base, not to exceed 50 passenger capacity, to operate out of Sea 

Love Boat Works marina.  

LOCATION: 4884 Front Street (Sea Love Boat Works marina property) 

APPLICANT: Vernon Kuftic, applicant, owner of Daytona Catamarans, LLC 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval, based on the findings listed in this memorandum 

MEETING DATE: July 29, 2025 

INTRODUCTION 1 

The applicant, Vernon Kuftic, requests approval of a minor special exception for a sightseeing 2 

boat base (not to exceed 50 passenger capacity) at Sea Love Boat Works marina. If approved, the 3 

applicant intends to operate a sightseeing boat, using the existing dock and boat slip facilities at 4 

the property. The subject property is located on the Halifax River, at 4884 Front Street 5 

(Attachment A), in the “B-2” (Riverfront Commercial) zoning district and “ROD” (Riverfront 6 

Overlay District). This is a change of location from a previously approved special exception (SE 7 

08-01) by the same owner for a sightseeing boat base at 4936 S. Peninsula Drive.8 

9 

SPECIAL EXCEPTION REVIEW PROCESS 10 

The Land Use and Development Code (LUDC) defines special exceptions as uses that would not 11 

be appropriate without restriction throughout a particular zoning classification but that would not 12 

adversely affect the public health, safety, or general welfare, if controlled in number, area, location, 13 

relation to the surrounding area. For those reasons, special exceptions require a comprehensive 14 

7-A



Minor Special Exception – 4884 Front Street  Page 2 

Case No. SPEC 006-2025 

 

      

review at a public hearing, must meet specific criteria for approval, and may necessitate specific 15 

conditions to mitigate any potential adverse impacts to protect the public interest. 16 

 17 

The special exception review process is described in Section 6.6.3 of the LUDC. Minor special 18 

exceptions can be approved by the Planning Board, while major special exceptions require 19 

approval from the Town Council. Following staff review, the minor special exception application 20 

is heard by the Planning Board at a duly noticed public hearing. The Board shall approve, deny or 21 

approve the application with conditions based on staff analysis of the application, testimony from 22 

the applicant, adjacent property owners, and the public.  23 

 24 

PROPERTY OVERVIEW 25 

The Sea Love Boat Works marina property, from which the Daytona Catamarans, LLC business 26 

is proposed to operate, is approximately 4.3 acres in size. The proposed use of the site, boat slip 27 

and dock area for loading is shown on Attachment B. It has a future land use designation of 28 

Riverfront Commercial, is zoned “B-2” (Riverfront Commercial), and lies within the “ROD” 29 

(Riverfront Overlay District). The properties to the east and north have “R-1” residential zoning 30 

and are developed with single-family residential homes. The Town’s Historical  Museum is located 31 

east of the subject location and is zoned “P/I” Public Institutional. The properties to south are 32 

zoned “MF-2” (High Density Multi-Family Residential) and “B-2” (Riverfront Commercial). The 33 

zoning map is provided in Attachment C and the Future Land Use Map is provided in Attachment 34 

D. 35 

  36 

The Sea Love Boat Works marina property has 24 wet boat slips and 53 dry boat slips. There are 37 

several businesses operating at this site, most of which are water-dependent uses. The marina 38 

services include boat maintenance, repair, boat slip rental, dockage, and fueling. Sea Spirit Deep 39 

See Fishing Charters and Waterproof Charters Fishing vessels also operate from the marina 40 

property. The Down the Hatch restaurant is located on an adjacent parcel and is under the same 41 

ownership as the marina.  42 

 43 

USE PROPOSAL 44 

According to the applicant’s letter of request (Attachment E), the proposed use on the property 45 

includes docking and loading for a passenger sightseeing boat, the “ARABELLA.” The Arabella is 46 

a 50' x 28' Catamaran. The vessel is US Coast Guard Certified to accommodate up to 48 47 

passengers, Arabella offers an abundance of deck and open mesh “trampoline” area between the 48 

hulls. The applicant notes that the request for the change of location from 4936 S. Peninsula Drive 49 

to the Sea Love Boat Works marina is to access a mooring site with deeper water, making it safer 50 

for customers to board the vessel.  51 

 52 

  
Pictured above: The “Arabella” 



Minor Special Exception – 4884 Front Street  Page 3 

Case No. SPEC 006-2025 

 

      

Daytona Catamarans, LLC, offers tours daily between the hours of 10 am and 9 pm. It  averages 53 

about 1 trip per day but occasionally has 2 trips per day. There is one USCG certified captain and 54 

one crew member on most trips. For trips exceeding 20 people, one additional crew member is 55 

added.  56 

 57 

The minor special exception application indicates that the existing facilities at Sea Love Boat 58 

Works marina can support the use and that no new development will take place. The sightseeing 59 

operation will have one designated wet boat slip. The applicant provided a copy of the lease and 60 

designated parking lot location with the application. The large parking area located north of Beach 61 

Street on the east side of Front Street (4877 Front Street) consists of approximately 60 parking 62 

spaces. Seven of these spaces are required for employees of Sea Love Boat Works marina, with 63 

20 for Sea Spirit Deep Sea Fishing Charters passengers and crew, and 5 for Waterproof Charters 64 

Fishing passengers and crew. This leaves 28 parking spaces to be utilized by the applicant. The 65 

vessel capacity requires a minimum of 19 parking spaces pursuant to LUDC Section 4.7.8. The 66 

available parking is therefore adequate for the proposed minor special exception use. 67 

 68 

The “B-2” (Riverfront Commercial) zoning district is intended to support small-scale water-69 

oriented commercial activity, in accordance with the Future Land Use Element policies of the 70 

Comprehensive Plan. To that end, the “B-2” district allows a variety of water-dependent and water-71 

enhanced uses. Types of boat uses include, but are not limited to: 72 

• Boat or vessel rental; charter fishing boats 73 

• Boat or vessel sales, service, and construction 74 

• Sightseeing boat base (not to exceed 50-passenger capacity) 75 

 76 

The first two categories are permitted uses, while a sightseeing boat base, not to exceed 50 77 

passenger capacity, requires a minor special exception approval in the B-2 zoning district (LUDC 78 

Section 2.40 Table of Permitted Uses). 79 

 80 

REVIEW OF SPECIAL EXCEPTION CRITERIA 81 

Every special exception must meet criteria specific to its use, along with general criteria applicable 82 

to all development applications. These criteria are discussed below. 83 
 84 
Specific criteria for sightseeing boat base operations (Section 3.29.2) 85 

 86 

1.  The parcel proposed for development has direct access to water of at least four feet 87 

below mean sea level at mean low tide.  88 
 89 
 Applicant’s Response: The property has direct access to water that is deeper than four feet at 90 

low tide. This criterion is met. 91 

 92 

Staff’s Response: The subject property has direct water access to the Halifax River and meets 93 

the water depth requirement of at least four feet at mean low tide according to available tide 94 

tables. To verify the water depth, the applicant provided photographs of the vessel’s depth 95 

gauge at low tide on May 6, 2025. The depth of the water where the boat is to be docked is 96 

approximately 17 feet at mean low tide. This criterion is met. 97 

 98 



Minor Special Exception – 4884 Front Street  Page 4 

Case No. SPEC 006-2025 

 

      

2.  All outside storage areas are screened from adjacent uses and properties by a solid wall, 99 

fence or plant material. If said screening is to be comprised of plant material, it shall 100 

form a screen of at least 75 percent opacity at the time of installation. 101 
 102 
 Applicant’s Response: Outside storage areas will not be necessary to operate and no other 103 

buildings are to be constructed. This criterion is met. 104 

 105 

Staff’s Response: There will be no outside storage areas used. If outside storage areas are not 106 

being used or proposed, then screening of such areas is not required. This criterion is met. 107 

 108 

3.  The parcel proposed for development shall be separated from any established 109 

residential use or residentially zoned property by a bufferyard in accordance with 110 

section 4.10.3 of this code. 111 
  112 
 Applicant’s Response: The vessel will be kept in the water at its dock and will not affect the 113 

neighborhood which is mainly commercial in nature, nor the value of land and surrounding 114 

structures. This criterion is met. 115 
 116 

Staff’s Response: There is no new development proposed for the parcel. The boat will be 117 

docked at the existing developed Sea Love Boat Works marina and is separated from 118 

established residential areas by Down the Hatch Restaurant, parking lots, and existing 119 

vegetation. The nearest residential uses are separated from the subject property by other 120 

waterfront commercial uses and open water. This criterion is met. 121 

 122 

4. Any building or structure proposed to be constructed that is necessary for the 123 

sightseeing boat operation (e.g., ticket sales, office, maintenance, etc.) shall be not less 124 

than 200 square feet and not exceed 2,000 square feet in floor area. 125 
 126 

 Applicant’s Response: No other buildings are to be constructed. This criterion is met. 127 

 128 

Staff’s Response: No new buildings or structures will be constructed for the Daytona 129 

Catamarans, LLC boat tour operation. All tours are booked online through the website 130 

(www.funcatsailing.com) and no management, office or ticketing activity will occur on the 131 

property. This criterion is met. 132 

 133 

General criteria for all development applications (LUDC 6.3.6.F) 134 

The Planning Board shall review all applications for compliance with the following general 135 

criteria: 136 

 137 

1. Consistency with comprehensive plan. The development order shall be consistent with the 138 

comprehensive plan and the future land use map. A finding of consistency with all elements 139 

of the plan is required. 140 
 141 

 Applicant’s Response: The proposed Special Exception will enhance the existing water 142 

oriented commercial uses currently permitted on the property by adding another dimension 143 

to the access to the river and ocean. This criterion is met. 144 

 145 

Staff’s Response: As stated in Chapter II, Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive 146 

Plan, the Riverfront Commercial future land use category shall include “land and water-147 

http://www.funcatsailing.com/


Minor Special Exception – 4884 Front Street  Page 5 

Case No. SPEC 006-2025 

 

      

oriented uses and activities that reflect and enhance the unique character of the waterfront, 148 

preserve and protect both physical and visual access to the waterfront, and create a water-149 

oriented environment wherein town residents and visitors can mingle in harmony and 150 

mutually enjoy the town's unique waterfront heritage.” Recreational and working waterfront 151 

uses shall be given preference in this land use category and are defined as "parcels and/or 152 

facilities that are open to the public and offer public access by vessels to the waters of the 153 

state, or that are support facilities for recreational, commercial, research, or government 154 

vessels.” The requested use is also consistent with related policies in Chapter VI, Coastal 155 

Management and Conservation Element, which promotes public access to the river and water 156 

dependent uses along the shoreline and does not conflict with policies outlined in the other 157 

chapters. The addition of the Daytona Catamarans, LLC sightseeing boat base, is anticipated 158 

to enhance the existing water-oriented commercial uses currently permitted on the property 159 

and provide another opportunity to access the Town’s waterways. Therefore, staff finds the 160 

proposed special exception for the Daytona Catamarans, LLC sightseeing boat to be 161 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. This criterion is met. 162 

 163 

2. Impact on surrounding area. The development order shall be consistent with the proposed 164 

use(s), intensity, density, scale, mass, bulk, height, lot configurations, architecture and 165 

building orientation of the surrounding uses (if applicable) and the intensity, density and 166 

scale of surrounding development. 167 
 168 
 Applicant’s Response: The vessel will be kept in the water at its dock and will not affect the 169 

neighborhood, which is mainly commercial in nature. This criterion is met. 170 

 171 

Staff’s Response: The sightseeing boat base will be located within the existing marina 172 

development. No new construction is needed or proposed to support the use. There is a 173 

significant number of other water-dependent businesses operating along the river within the 174 

marina along with a waterfront restaurant. Due to the nature of the businesses already 175 

operating from this location, staff finds that the addition of this boat will not alter the 176 

character of the area and is not expected to adversely affect the surrounding properties. This 177 

criterion is met.  178 

 179 

3. Impact on evacuation times. Resulting development shall not occur in amounts, types or 180 

locations that would cause an increase in the number of travel through-lanes or total 181 

evacuation times to exceed those established in the comprehensive plan's Coastal 182 

Management Element. The town shall ensure that it maintains out-of-county hurricane 183 

evacuation times for a Category 5 storm event as measured on the Saffir-Simpson scale for 184 

the total population of the town. These evacuation times shall be no more than 16 hours from 185 

the time of first official order to evacuate. 186 
 187 
 Applicant’s Response: The business has been operating in Ponce Inlet for 14 years and has 188 

never caused the local traffic to be adversely affected. This criterion is met. 189 

 190 

Staff’s Response: The proposed use is not adding to the residential population that would 191 

need to be evacuated in advance of a hurricane. Staff does not anticipate that the proposed 192 

tour boat operation will adversely affect evacuation times. This criterion is met. 193 

 194 



Minor Special Exception – 4884 Front Street  Page 6 

Case No. SPEC 006-2025 

 

      

4. Compliance with consistency and concurrency standards. When required, the 195 

development order shall include a finding of consistency with article 5, Consistency and 196 

concurrency standards.  197 
 198 
 Applicant’s Response: The business has been operating in Ponce Inlet for 14 years. There 199 

will be no outside storage or any additional buildings to be constructed. This criterion is met. 200 

 201 

Staff’s Response:. Relocating the business will not change or increase the impact to public 202 

facilities or services. This criterion is met. 203 

 204 

5. Consistent with prior approvals. The development order shall be consistent with the terms 205 

and conditions of any prior plan or plat approval, as applicable, including without limitation 206 

an approved phasing plan for development and installation of public improvements and 207 

amenities. 208 
 209 
 Applicant’s Response: There will be no outside storage or any additional buildings to be 210 

constructed. This criterion is met. 211 

 212 

Staff’s Response: The Daytona Catamarans, LLC sightseeing boat, will utilize one existing 213 

wet boat slip, the dock area, and up to 19 parking spaces that were originally developed with 214 

the Sea Love Boat Works marina. This use will be consistent with all prior plan and permit 215 

approvals. This criterion is met. 216 

 217 

6. Compliance with use and development standards. The development order shall comply 218 

with all applicable use standards, site development standards, design standards, subdivision 219 

standards, public improvement standards, floodplain management standards, and all other 220 

applicable substantive standards stated in this code. 221 
 222 
 Applicant’s Response: There will be no outside storage or any additional buildings to be 223 

constructed. This criterion is met. 224 

 225 

Staff’s Response: This use requires no additional development or improvements to the site. 226 

This criterion is met. 227 

 228 

7. Compliance with other applicable regulations. The proposed development shall comply 229 

with all other applicable regulations, standards, requirements, or plans of the town, county, 230 

federal or state governments and other relevant jurisdictions. 231 
 232 

 Applicant’s Response: “Fun Cat Sailing” (Daytona Catamarans, LLC) has been operating in 233 

the core area for 14 years. This criterion is met. 234 

 235 

Staff’s Response: The Daytona Catamarans, LLC sightseeing boat business, will be required 236 

to file for a business tax receipt with the Town and maintain all State licensing for operation 237 

of the tour boat. This criterion is met. 238 

 239 

8. Minimizes adverse fiscal impacts. The minor special exception development order shall 240 

not result in significant adverse fiscal impacts on the town. 241 
 242 



Minor Special Exception – 4884 Front Street  Page 7 

Case No. SPEC 006-2025 

 

      

 Applicant’s Response: The vessel will be kept in the at its dock and will not affect the 243 

neighborhood, which is mainly commercial in nature, nor the value of land and surrounding 244 

structures. This criterion is met.  245 

 246 

Staff’s Response: The proposed tour boat business is not expected to have adverse fiscal 247 

impacts on the Town. This criterion is met.  248 

 249 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 250 

At the regularly scheduled Planning Board meeting on June 24, 2025, the Board moved to carry 251 

the meeting over to a date to be determined [tabled]; 5-0, consensus. 252 

 253 

Based on the Board’s discussion, staff visited the parking lot on July 3, 2025 at approximately 254 

9:30 a.m. to observe the parking demand. Nineteen cars were parked in the marina parking lot at 255 

the time of the staff visit. There were approximately 60 parking spaces total, 34 with concrete 256 

wheel stops and several others with continuous tubular wheel stops. No cars were parked on the 257 

east side of the lot adjacent to homes on Sailfish Drive. Images are included in Addendum A. 258 

 259 

While on site, staff communicated with two marina employees who indicated that Gator Dredging 260 

(contractor for the County of Volusia dredging/beach renourishment project) began parking in the 261 

lot at the start of the dredging project. This is likely to account for the recent increase in vehicles, 262 

noise, and lights in the parking lot. The applicant noted that Gator Dredging has been notified not 263 

to back into parking spaces and to stop loitering in the parking lot after work.  264 

 265 

Staff contacted the property owner, Stephen Petersen, by email to inquire about the following 266 

options to address resident’s concerns. 267 

 268 

Options 269 

1. Addition of a vegetative buffer along east property lines between parking lot and homes 270 

abutting the lot. 271 

2. Installation of a fence along east property line between parking lot and homes abutting the 272 

lot. 273 

3. Provide an alternative parking site across Beach Street (south side of Beach Street and 274 

north side of Front Street). 275 

4. Make no improvements. 276 

 277 

Mr. Petersen indicated he will attend the July 29, 2025 meeting. 278 

 279 

PUBLIC NOTICE 280 

A letter notifying the surrounding property owners of the special exception public hearing was 281 

mailed on July 8, 2025, via certified mail. The property was posted on July 14, 2025, with a notice 282 

stating the date and time of the Planning Board meeting. The Planning Board meeting was noticed 283 

in the Daytona Beach News-Journal on July 21, 2025. These efforts were made to ensure that the 284 

surrounding property owners were aware of the application and for them to have an opportunity to 285 

voice any concerns and requests. 286 

 287 

Staff received correspondence from Sailfish Drive residents Barbara Davis and Keith Stanton, 288 

included (Addendum B). 289 



Minor Special Exception – 4884 Front Street  Page 8 

Case No. SPEC 006-2025 

 

      

 290 

CONDITIONS 291 

Pursuant to LUDC Section 6.6.3, the Planning Board may impose additional conditions or 292 

safeguards deemed necessary on the granting of any special exception. Violation of any such 293 

condition or safeguards is deemed a violation of this code. The Planning Board may revoke the 294 

special exception permit upon finding that there have been material violations of any of the Code 295 

criteria or conditions of approval, or that the conduct of the owner and any occupant constitutes a 296 

public nuisance. The town may institute legal or equitable proceedings to revoke the special 297 

exception permit. Applicants who have had their permit revoked may not apply for another special 298 

exception permit for two years after the revocation date. 299 

 300 

As noted above, special exception uses are acceptable in limited numbers and under certain 301 

conditions deemed necessary to protect the public health, safety and welfare. Such conditions 302 

should pertain to the size, scope, location and proper safety standards for this type of business 303 

necessary to ensure that it does not endanger the public or become a nuisance. Staff’s 304 

recommendation and conditions are provided below. 305 

 306 

RECOMMENDATION 307 

Based on the findings of this memorandum, Staff recommends approval of the minor special 308 

exception for Sea Love Boat Works marina to operate a sightseeing boat base  at 4884 Front 309 

Street, subject to the following conditions.  310 

 311 

a. The minor special exception use is limited to one sightseeing boat base (not to exceed 50 312 

passenger capacity). 313 

 314 

b. The mooring site shall have direct access to water of at least four feet below mean sea level 315 

at mean low tide. 316 

 317 

c. One wet slip shall be assigned to this use from the total number of wet slips allotted to Sea 318 

Love Boat Works marina.  319 

 320 

d. Sea Love Boat Works marina shall allocate 19 parking spaces in its parking lot for the 321 

sightseeing boat base use.   322 

 323 

e. Any proposed relocation of this use elsewhere in the Town shall be reviewed as a new special 324 

exception application. 325 

 326 

f. The applicant shall maintain all applicable federal, state, and local licenses and a valid 327 

business tax receipt with the Town.   328 

 329 

g. The property owner shall improve the parking lot by organizing the parking wheel stops to 330 

clearly delineate the 60 parking spaces in the parking lot. 331 

 332 

h. The property owner shall install a buffer, either vegetative or a fence, between the parking 333 

lot and residential lots where no existing buffer is present. The vegetative screening shall be 334 

salt and flood tolerant. Should a fence be used for screening, the fence must comply with the 335 

Land Use and Development Code. 336 



Minor Special Exception – 4884 Front Street  Page 9 

Case No. SPEC 006-2025 

 

      

 337 

 338 

               339 
          July 21, 2025 340 

Patty Rippey, Principal Planner    341 

 342 

 343 

Attachments: 344 
A. Location map 345 
B. Site Plan 346 
C. Zoning Map 347 
D. Future Land Use Map 348 
E. Applicant’s letter of request 349 

 350 
Addendums: 351 

A. Aerial Images/Photographs 352 
B. Correspondence353 



 

 

 

      

 

Case No.: SPEC 006-2025 Summary of Request: Approving a special 

exception to allow a site-seeing boat base, not to 

exceed 50 passengers, to operate out of Sea Love 

Boat Works marina. 

Applicant: Vernon Kuftic, owner of Daytona 

Catamarans, LLC 

Property Address/Location: 4884 Front Street 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

LOCATION MAP 

 
T O W N  O F  P O N C E  I N L E T 

 



 

 

 

      

 

Case No.: SPEC 006-2025 Summary of Request: Approving a special 

exception to allow a site-seeing boat base, not to 

exceed 50 passengers, to operate out of Sea Love 

Boat Works marina. 

Applicant: Vernon Kuftic, owner of Daytona 

Catamarans, LLC 

Property Address/Location: 4884 Front Street 

 

ATTACHMENT B 

SITE PLAN  

 
T O W N  O F  P O N C E  I N L E T 

 

 

  



 

 

 

      

 

 

Case No.: SPEC 006-2025 Summary of Request: Approving a special 

exception to allow a site-seeing boat base, not to 

exceed 50 passengers, to operate out of Sea Love 

Boat Works marina. 

Applicant: Vernon Kuftic, owner of Daytona 

Catamarans, LLC 

Property Address/Location: 4884 Front Street 

 

ATTACHMENT C 

ZONING MAP 

 
T O W N  O F  P O N C E  I N L E T 

 

 



 

 

 

      

 

 

Case No.: SPEC 006-2025 Summary of Request: Approving a special 

exception to allow a site-seeing boat base, not to 

exceed 50 passengers, to operate out of Sea Love 

Boat Works marina. 

Applicant: Vernon Kuftic, owner of Daytona 

Catamarans, LLC 

Property Address/Location: 4884 Front Street 

 

ATTACHMENT D 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

 
T O W N  O F  P O N C E  I N L E T 

 

 



 

 

 

      

ATTACHMENT E 

 

 
  



 

 

 

      

ADDENDUM A 

AERIAL IMAGES/ PHOTOGRAPHS 
 

 
Figure 1 Aerial image of Sea Love Boat Works Marina  

parking lot east of Front Street and north of Beach Street 

 

 
Figure 2 Aerial image closeup of Sea Love Boat Works Marina  

east of Front Street and north of Beach Street 

 



 

 

 

      

 
Figure 3 Marina parking lot looking east towards the  

residential property on the corner of Beach Street and Sailfish Drive 

 

Figure 4 Marina parking lot looking northeast 



 

 

 

      

 
Figure 5 East property line of the parking lot  

and wall on west property line of residential property 



 

 

 

      

 

Figure 6 Existing tree buffer on east side of parking lot along residential wall 



 

 

 

      

 

Figure 7 Residential fence on east side of marina parking lot 



 

 

 

      

 

Figure 8 Existing tree buffer along east side of parking lot 



 

 

 

      

 

Figure 9 Vegetative buffer on east side of parking lot 

 

 

Figure 10 Vegetative buffer on east side of parking lot 



 

 

 

      

 

 

Figure 11 View of parking lot looking south towards museum 



 

 

 

      

 

Figure 12 View of parking lot looking north 

 



 

 

 

      

 

Figure 13 View of parking lot looking north from Beach Street 

 

 

Figure 14 View of parking lot looking southwest towards Beach Street 

 



 

 

 

      

 

Figure 15 View of parking lot looking north 

 

 

Figure 16 View of parking lot looking northwest 

 



 

 

 

      

ADDENDUM B 

CORRESPONDENCE 

 

 

 



 

 

 

      

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

      

 
 

 



 
 

 

 
Report to Planning Board 

 
Topic: Amending Articles 3 and 10 of the Land Use and 

Development Code (LUDC) 
  
Summary: 
 
To amend Articles 3 and 10 of the Land Use and Development Code 
(LUDC) related to rental registrations and inspections. 
 
Suggested motion: Approval 
 
Requested by: 
 
Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director  
 
Reviewed by: 
 
Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director 
 
Approved by: 
 
Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: July 29, 2025 

Agenda Item:   8-A 



 Page 1 of 3 

MEMORANDUM 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring, and fair in delivering community excellence 

while ensuring Ponce Inlet residents obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Planning Board  

From: Darren Lear, AICP, Planning & Development Director 

Date: July 14, 2025 

Subject: Amending Articles 3 and 10 of the Land Use and Development Code (LUDC) related 

to rental registrations and inspections. 

MEETING DATE: July 29, 2025 

INTRODUCTION 1 

On April 5, 2024, a code enforcement case was initiated against the owners of a single-family 2 

residential property for operating a rental dwelling without the required permit. During the “Public 3 

Participation” segment of the regular Town Council meeting held on April 18, 2024, one of the 4 

owners expressed his concerns regarding the Town’s rental policies, specifically addressing the 5 

fee structure for long-term versus short-term rentals. 6 

7 

On May 31, 2024, the owners were issued a code enforcement Notice of Violation (NOV) with a 8 

compliance deadline of June 14, 2024. Prior to the scheduled Code Enforcement Board meeting 9 

on July 22, 2024, written objections and legal arguments challenging the NOV were submitted by 10 

the property owners, citing potential preemption in Chapter 83, Part II of the Florida Statutes which 11 

relates to the landlord-tenant relationship and residential tenancies. After reviewing the materials, 12 

the Town’s Code Enforcement Attorney determined that the issues raised merited further legal 13 

clarification. As a result, he recommended seeking an opinion from the Florida Attorney General, 14 

and the Town elected to withdraw the code case at that time.  The Town subsequently suspended 15 

its Rental Permit Program (RPP) for long-term rentals pending the identification of a suitable 16 

resolution. 17 

18 

On August 22, 2024, the Town Council authorized the Town Attorney to request a legal opinion 19 

from the Florida Attorney General regarding the issue. The formal request (Attachment 1) was 20 

submitted to the Attorney General’s Office in October 2024. 21 

22 

In January 2025, the Town received a response from the Attorney General (Attachment 2) 23 

declining to provide a formal opinion on this matter. Town Council directed the Town Attorney to 24 

8-A



    Page 2 of 3 

 

move forward with suggested code amendments pursuant to Attorney Smith’s memo (Attachment 25 

3) at the regularly scheduled meeting on May 15, 2025. 26 

 27 

DISCUSSION 28 

In accordance with Town Council’s direction, the proposed amendments to the LUDC 29 

(Attachment 4) have been drafted by the Town Attorney to more precisely articulate the 30 

procedures, requirements and regulatory framework applicable to rental properties. These 31 

amendments are intended to remove the parts of the regulations that could potentially be found in 32 

conflict with Florida Statutes while preserving the portions relevant to the Town’s RPP. 33 

Because amendments are proposed for both the Code of Ordinances and the LUDC, two separate 34 

ordinances will be presented to Town Council for consideration. However, in accordance with the 35 

Town's procedures, the proposed LUDC amendments must first be reviewed by the Planning 36 

Board, which will provide a recommendation to Town Council. 37 

Articles 3 and 10 amendments are related to the following: 38 

• Removal of Section 3.18.4 “General regulations”; 39 

• Revising the description of how the rental permit and inspection fees are calculated, and 40 

adding a requirement that a permit be filed before rentals commence in Section 3.18.5 41 

“Fees and application schedule”; 42 

• Removal of Section 3.18.7 “Annual reporting requirements”; 43 

• Revising information required for applications in Section 10.1.10. “Rental permit 44 

applications”.  45 

BACKGROUND 46 

In September 2003, the Town of Ponce Inlet took a significant step toward enhancing public safety, 47 

preserving neighborhood integrity and improving the quality of rental housing by adopting a 48 

Rental Permit Program (RPP). The initiative was developed in response to growing concerns 49 

regarding the condition and oversight of rental properties within the community. These concerns 50 

included issues related to property maintenance, overcrowding and a lack of clear accountability 51 

for rental units. 52 

 53 

The RPP grew out of the Ponce Inlet community-wide visioning process in 2002 that was aimed 54 

at shaping the Town’s long-term development goals. As part of that effort, a questionnaire was 55 

distributed to residents to identify the values and priorities most important to the community. One 56 

such value is identified below: 57 

 58 

“Update and consistently apply all code enforcement policies. Specific policies must be developed 59 

and enforced that ensure that Ponce Inlet will not become a rental community characterized by a 60 

high turnover in residential areas.” 61 

 62 

The RPP established a framework requiring all residential rental properties to obtain an annual 63 

permit from the Town. As part of the permitting process, property owners were required to submit 64 

basic information about their rental units and for short-term rental units, agree to periodic 65 

inspections to ensure compliance with minimum housing and safety standards. The goal was to 66 



    Page 3 of 3 

 

create a proactive approach to code enforcement, one that emphasized education, accountability,  67 

and the long-term preservation of both the housing stock and community character. 68 

 69 

Since its implementation, the RPP has served as an important tool for promoting safe and well-70 

maintained rental housing, while reinforcing the Town’s commitment to high standards of 71 

community living. 72 

 73 

 74 

Recommendation 75 

Staff recommends approval of the amendments to Articles 3 and 10 of the LUDC as drafted by the 76 

Town Attorney related to rental registrations and inspections.  77 

 78 

 79 

Attachments: 80 

1. Request from Town Attorney to Attorney General 81 

2. Attorney General response 82 

3. Town Attorney memo with suggested amendments 83 

4. Proposed Articles 3 and 10 amendments 84 



dlear
Typewritten Text
       Attachment 1













dlear
Typewritten Text
  Attachment 2





dlear
Typewritten Text
Attachment 3















         

  

 

 
Page 4 of 6 

Attachment 4 1 

 2 

3.18.1 Applicability. 3 

A. Definitions. 4 

Dwelling, rental. A residential building leased by its owner to one or more tenants for 5 

their use and occupancy on a temporary basis.  6 

Rental, rent, rented, or renting. Includes the arranging of, contracting or advertising for, 7 

or the making available of the use of a dwelling unit for a finite period of time for any legal 8 

consideration. A rental arrangement is evidenced by the existence of a financial, business, 9 

barter, or employee/employer relationship between the legal or equitable owner of a dwelling 10 

unit and temporary occupant(s). Rental does not include the use of a dwelling unit by family 11 

members, friends or house-sitters, unless legal consideration is provided to the owner or usual 12 

occupant.  13 

B. How permitted. See section 2.40, Table 2-5 (Table of Permitted Uses).  14 

3.18.2 Applicability. 15 

Rental of a dwelling is prohibited unless the owner of a rented dwelling holds a rental permit 16 

and fully satisfies all other requirements of this code.  A rental permit allows the rental of a 17 

dwelling consistent with the requirements of this section.  18 

3.18.3 Rental permit application process. 19 

A. A rental permit application is filed with the director, and must include the information 20 

required by article 10.  21 

B. Within five business days, the director shall:  22 

1. Issue the rental permit if it complies with this section, or  23 

2. Return the application as incomplete if it does not include the required information, or  24 

3. Deny the application if it does not comply with this section.  25 

3.18.4 General regulations. RESERVED 26 

The following regulations shall pertain to the rental of dwellings:  27 

A. A contact person must be available 24 hours per day, seven days per week to respond to 28 

complaints regarding the conduct of the occupants of the subject dwelling.  29 

B. Occupancy of individual units shall conform to the occupancy limits of all applicable 30 

building codes.  31 

C. The owner or manager shall maintain a tenant and vehicle registration that includes the name 32 

and address of each unit's tenant and the make, year and tag number of the tenant's vehicle.  33 

D. There shall be a written lease between the owner and tenant and that includes an explicit 34 

statement that the tenant agrees to follow these regulations.  35 



         

  

 

 
Page 5 of 6 

E. Violation of these provisions may result in revocation of the rental permit for cause, upon 36 

notice and opportunity to be heard by the town council and subject to prosecution before the 37 

special magistrate, and any other penalties, as provided for in section 3.18.6 below.  38 

F. The rental permit application shall be filed with the town prior to rental of the subject 39 

property.  40 

3.18.5 Fees and application schedule. 41 

A. A person or entity who is applying for or holds a rental permit shall pay an annual rental 42 

permit fee in an amount as established from time to time by resolution of the town council 43 

upon the filing of the rental permit application.  44 

B. Fee revenues raised under this section shall fund a position in the code enforcement 45 

department of the town, and provide enforcement and processing personnel as needed and 46 

investigative services. The officer holding this position shall enforce this section.  47 

The fee shall be calculated based on the expected cost to the town of conducting the rental 48 

permit program and may include the cost of town staff and resources assigned to the rental 49 

permit program. 50 

C. All holders of a rental permit who continue to rent the subject dwelling shall submit a renewal 51 

application containing all the information required for the original rental permit application 52 

and pay the required rental permit fee by no later than October 1 of each year or shall be 53 

subject to a late fee to be established by the resolution of the town council.  54 

D. The rental permit application shall be filed with the town prior to rental of the subject 55 

property 56 

 57 

3.18.6 Enforcement and penalties. 58 

A. A violation of this section is punishable by a fine per day, per unit and per violation in 59 

accordance with Florida law commensurate with F.S. ch. 162.  60 

B. The town council may revoke any rental permit for cause, upon notice and opportunity to be 61 

heard by the town council.  62 

3.18.7 Annual reporting requirements.  RESERVED 63 

A. Annual summary report. 64 

1. An annual summary report must be filed by:  65 

2. All licensed real estate agents, brokers, agents or other parties who represent an owner 66 

of a property rented at any time during a calendar year; and  67 

3. All owners of dwellings rented at any time during a calendar year.  68 

4. The summary report is due by February 1 of each year.  69 

5. The report shall reflect the rental activities of all subject dwellings within the town for 70 

the previous calendar year. This report shall include, at a minimum, the address of 71 

subject property and length of rental period per tenant.  72 



         

  

 

 
Page 6 of 6 

6. The town shall maintain a third-party rental summary report form and make it available 73 

to the public upon request.  74 

7. Violation of this requirement subjects violators to prosecution before the special 75 

magistrate and other penalties in section 3.18.6.  76 

B. Record keeping. 77 

1. Annual record keeping is required for any of the entities listed in subsection 78 

3.18.7.A above.  79 

2. These entities shall maintain records indicating:  80 

a. The name and address of each tenant during this period;  81 

b. Each tenant's vehicle registration, which shall include the make, year and tag 82 

number of the tenant's vehicle; and  83 

c. The written lease between the owner and tenant for inspection by the code 84 

enforcement officer upon request.  85 

* * * 86 

10.1.10. - Rental permit applications. 87 

A rental permit application must include the following information: 88 

A. The complete street address and parcel number of the property; 89 

B. Proof of ownership, including tThe name, mailing address, e-mail 90 

address, and telephone number of each person or entity with an 91 

ownership interest in the property; 92 

C. The gross square footage of the dwelling, including the number of 93 

rooms, bedrooms, kitchens, and on-site parking spaces attributable to 94 

the rental; 95 

D.  A valid and current federal employer tax identification number or 96 

Social Security number for the property owner(s);  97 

ED  The name, mailing address, e-mail address and 24-hour phone number 98 

of the rental property manager, if applicable; 99 

FE  The signatures of allan owners or authorized agents or authorized 100 

property managers; 101 

GF  For short-term rentals (renting less than four consecutive weeks), a 102 

current, approved inspection report from the fire marshal in accordance 103 

with Chapter 69A-43 of the Uniform Fire Safety Standards for 104 

Transient Public Lodging Establishments, Timeshares and Timeshare 105 

Unit Facilities; and 106 

HG  For short-term rentals and long-term rentals of six months or less, a 107 

valid and current Florida Department of Revenue sales tax 108 

identification number under F.S. ch. 212, and a valid and current 109 

license under F.S. ch. 509. 110 

 111 

 112 


	A  07-29-2025 PB agenda
	B  4 - Cover
	C  06-24-2025 PB minutes-Final
	D  07-24-2025 PB Spec Mtg minutes
	06-24-2025 PB special mtg minutes-DL edits - MD edits
	email - K. Stanton
	email - Klopfenstein

	E  7-A  Cover
	F  7-A  Staff Report - SPEC 006-2025 4894 Front Street Daytona Cat- 2nd Hearing - FINAL
	G  8-A  Cover
	H  8-A  Staff Report PB Rental Program-Final (2)



